[image: image1.jpg]


 SBIR Public Briefing: Questions and Answers


Date:
March 4, 2002

Time:
10:00 a.m.–1:00 p.m.

Location:
6700B Rockledge Drive, Room 1205, Bethesda, Md.

NIH Representatives

· Jerry Stuck:

Coordinator of Commons Activities, the eRA Project

· George Stone, Ph.D.: 

Extramural Inventions and Technology Resources Branch

· Paul Markovitz: 

Senior Advisor for Federal Commons, eRA Project

· John (JJ) McGowan, Ph.D.:

Deputy Director of the National Institute of Allergies and Infectious Diseases and the eRA Project Director

Questions

1. Question: Will the SBIR vendors be in competition with the NIH eRA development effort? The NIH eRA Project plans to implement a competing grant application Web interface in 2004. Will this effort be a source of competition to potential grantees?

Answer:

The NIH would like to avoid having to develop a competing grant application web interface. This is why NIH is focusing primarily on datastream submission of competitive grant applications. If NIH does develop such an interface, it would be in the context of the Federal Commons. It will not have the level of sophistication and service of a customized vendor solution. NIH-developed software will not fulfill all of the research institution customers’ requirements. The SBIR initiatives will fill this gap. NIH does not have the resources to meet all of the individual customers’ specific needs. Turbo-Tax could be seen as an example. An SBIR-developed product could include instructions on how to walk a Principal Investigator (PI) through the e-Grant submission process.

2. Question: Will each vendor who provides interface software connecting to NIH need to be certified?

Answer:

We see this as very important. NIH intends to use this opportunity to work with SBIR awardees to develop a certification process that can be applied not only to SBIR awardee products and services but to all service providers who intend to interact electronically with the NIH Commons. All SBIR vendors will need to be certified. We will create an explicit certification process that will be similar to an EDI trading partnership agreement.

3. Question: Would this certification be between the SBIR vendor and NIH?

Answer:

Yes. NIH would certify the vendor who could then market this “certified status.” They could make the claim, “This product has been certified to work with the NIH Commons.”

4. Question: Will the funds for these grants be awarded as “research project” funds or as “development effort” funds?

Answer:

These grants are considered research projects.

5. Question: The Request for Application (RFA) specifies that these are “Fast-Track” applications where the Phase I and Phase II applications are submitted together. This represents a challenge because the application is due in six weeks in spite of the fact that the requirements don’t seem to be completely defined.

Answer:

It is a challenge. My suggestion for generating the proposal would be to give a clear picture of the short-term: six months to a year. For the longer term, give two or three alternatives based on different scenarios. On the NIAID website (http://www.niaid.nih.gov/ncn/) under Council News, there is information that may be helpful. We are working against the existing 398 requirements. These requirements are pretty good. We are, however, looking for agile and flexible researchers who can adapt as things change.

6. Question: Has the government done research into whether institutions would be willing to pay for the proposed services and products?

Answer:

We do think that universities would be willing to pay for these kinds of services and products. As some universities ask the question: “How do I build these functions internally,” they find that they need consultants and vendors to be a part of the solution.

7. Question: Does the scope of this effort include software solutions only, or software and hardware solutions?

Answer:

We are not precluding hardware solutions. A “service provider” who could provide a full hardware and software platform to meet institutions’ needs would be a possible alternative.

8. Question: Will you make the Principal Investigator (PI) Professional Profile information available?

Answer:

Our data standards will be made public. Professional Profile information in the database will not be made public due to Privacy Act concerns.

9. Question: Will you provide NIH software or requirements documents for reuse by SBIR respondents to this RFA?

Answer:

We want this to be a collaborative effort. We will share our requirements documents.

10. Question: Does a vendor have to be funded through this SBIR opportunity to partner with NIH?

Answer:

No, any vendor, whether funded through this SBIR opportunity or not, is welcome to partner with NIH. We would want to work with any vendor who would want to build into our process. We are willing to collaborate with any vendor who has a product. We will test or pilot any vendor’s product with the NIH Commons.

11. Question: Will the SBIR vendors build grant award rejection functionality into their software?

Answer:

NIH is building status systems to handle final actions on grant submissions including rejections as well as awards. 

12. Question: When changes need to be made to Commons Institutional and PI profiles, would vendors handle this? Will NIH have a Web interface to handle these changes? Will the vendors also provide an interface in addition to the NIH interface?

Answer:

NIH would take a look at each of these transactions to see whether it makes sense to do this through a Web interface or as a datastream. NIH will build into the NIH Commons a module for organization reporting.

13. Question: At some point, will NIH mandate the use of the electronic interface to Commons? How long will NIH continue to accept paper grant proposals.

Answer:

We hope to mandate the use of the electronic system once we can demonstrate that electronic submission is viable.

14. Question: Will SBIR vendors handle administrative compliance issues with the actual grant submission?

Answer:

We will publish the data standards and ask vendors to do compliance checking in their software. We would prefer to push the administrative compliance as close as possible to the creation of the transaction. NIH will publish these compliance rules and also run them at the NIH Commons when a transaction is received.

15. Question: Will institutions use NIH as a repository for historical information, such as PI profile status, at a certain point in time? Who will have the responsibility for keeping these historical records? Would it be NIH, or would the SBIR vendor and/or the institutions also keep these records?

Answer:

NIH will need to keep historical data for reporting to the government. Schools and universities will need to keep a relevant subset of this information locally.

16. Question: Will it be necessary to reconcile or synchronize these two databases?

Answer:

No.

17. Question: Will NIH alert institutions that they will need to be changing their business processes and IT infrastructure to prepare for the full deployment of the eRA initiative?

Answer:

Yes. We are doing this outreach currently and will continue do to the public relations and outreach necessary to get this message out.

18. Question: What specific identifier key will be used in the NIH Commons database for Principal Investigator (PI) and for institutions or organizations?

Answer:

The DUNS number will be used for institutions. As part of the Federal Commons, an identifier for PI’s and individuals has been defined but not yet implemented. This is subject to change based on Office of Management and Budget (OMB) requirements and the work being done as part of the e-Authentication project under the OMB e-Government efforts. PI’s and other users will be identified using their User ID in the NIH Commons as we continue to follow the progress of the e-Authentication project.

19. Question: What is the relationship between the Federal Commons and the NIH Commons? Will grantees interface with both?

Answer:

The NIH Commons is the focus for interaction with the external community for the eRA Project. NIH continues to work closely with the Federal Commons project. It is in the NIH Commons that the registration process, accounts management, and organizational/ professional profiles are being developed. This is the same functionality that will be built into the Federal Commons. NIH intends to use the EDI/XML translation services at the Federal Commons. If the Federal Commons does not provide this capability to meet the NIH Commons schedule, NIH will integrate this translation capability into the NIH Commons. 

Question: What will NIH do to help potential SBIR grantees in developing their proposals? For example, will the eRA publish the attendees at this briefing?

Answer:

The website for the eRA is http://era.nih.gov/. We will continue to publish information about the SBIR opportunity on this website. The list of attendees at this briefing will be published on this site. This website is in the process of being redesigned to make the information easier to find for the community outside of NIH.

20. Question: Please go over the grant judging process.

Answer:

The NIH Center for Scientific Review (CSR) will convene a Peer Review Panel of outside experts to judge the research applications. As with all other research grants, each application will be reviewed on its own merit and scored from 1–5 by the reviewers. The issue is not whether a particular application addresses all or part of the possible functionality. You should treat this as a research project and need to explain how you plan to add on to the functionality that NIH is building. The main question reviewers are asking is how well the SBIR applicant’s research will add to the knowledge base.

21. Question: Does the scope of this opportunity include secure transmission capability?

Answer:

We will work with the awardees to build a secure transmission capability as we develop the concept of operations. An “e-Authentication” effort is also ongoing in the government. We are looking for one NIH-wide solution for the security of electronic transactions that will include not only grant applications but also such things as purchasing transactions. Since the technology is not yet mature, I wouldn’t advise making security the focus of a grant.

22. Question: Could you specify what you not looking for?

Answer:

I would advise you to concentrate on how you are going address overall functionality rather than focusing too much on one particular part of it.

23. Question: This does not appear to be a traditional SBIR RFA opportunity and appears to include market surveys and applications development. Will this be a problem?

Answer:

Many NIH SBIR grants do develop products as part of the grant. In this case, market research and product development are required.

24. Question: Is NIH the only governmental grantor that a university communicates with? Would there be a broader market for an application developed to work with the NIH Commons?

Answer:

There are 10 research grants agencies and 26 grant-making agencies in the government. Due to statutory requirements, all agencies will have to begin using common standards and move to an electronic business model. Yes, there is potential for a broader market.

25. Question: Is there buy-in from the Health and Human Services (HHS) agencies?

Answer:

A number of HHS agencies use the systems we have in place so they will have the option to move forward with us.

26. Question: I want to clarify the following point. This RFA does not include fellowship applications.

Answer:

That is correct. Fellowship applications are not included in the scope of this RFA.

27. Question: If a product is developed as a result of an SBIR grant, does NIH retain ownership of or distributions rights over that product?

Answer:

While the intellectual property rights for the products developed under this program accrue to the grantees, NIH will retain the right to use these products. NIH encourages grantees to aggressively distribute and market the products that they will produce in this program.

28. Question: If I develop a portal or Web service under this program, wouldn’t NIH be able to give away this Web service for free?

Answer:

The license is retained by the government for limited use but does not give the government free access to the software products developed. It does not give the government the right to compete with the vendor in the open market place with this product. In other words, the product could be used by the government, but for government purposes only. The applicable laws are the Bayh Dole Act and the SBIR law.

29. Question: Can we submit more than one proposal?

Answer:

You should consider what is the reviewer going to see. Reviewers will judge each application on its own merit and they will also consider the logic of each submission.

30. Question: Does this SBIR RFA opportunity include funding opportunities functionality?

Answer:

Funding opportunities is not currently part of the NIH Commons. It is not functionality that the eRA Project is addressing at this time. NIH will feed data into FedBizOpps and make funding opportunities available on the NIH web site.

31. Question: What is the maximum number of awards that will be made?

Answer:

It depends on the quality of the applications. There should be one to three (possibly four) Phase I grants made. Phase II awards are dependent on funds availability and progress under Phase I. There will be one to two Phase II grants.

32. Question: What can you tell me about submitting a Fast-Track type of application?

Answer:

Be explicit about short-term goals. Be more flexible about long-term goals based on the outcomes of your short-term goals.

33. Question: What if I have questions after this briefing is over?

Answer:

The email address for questions is: era-sbir@nih.gov . Contacts are also listed in the RFA document. Questions and answers from this briefing will be published on the http://era.nih.gov/ website. This webcast will be archived on http://videocast.nih.gov/ website. Look in the Special Lectures/Press Conferences category under Past Events.

34. Question: This is an intellectual property question. If part of the product or service developed under this program adds value to public domain data, who would own this value? Would the value-added data be in the public domain, or would it be owned by the contractor/grantee?

Answer:

When grants applications are made to the NIH, these applications are confidential. Once the grant award has been made, certain information contained in the grant record becomes public. Value-added information and reports based upon this public domain data belong to the contractor/grantee who added the value.

35. Question: Will NIH protect against the creation of proprietary data standards within datastreams as part of any products or services?

Answer:

NIH will want to have the data standards development proceed in a very open fashion. The idea behind this partnership between NIH and SBIR vendors is to have everything be very open. We will use agreed-upon, industry-wide standards.

